
PUBLIC HEARING 

before 

ASSEMBLY TRABSPORTATIOB ARD COMKURICATIOBS COMKI'ITEE 

on 

TRANSPORTATION FUNDIBG 

MKKBKRS OF COMIIIT'l'KK PRESENT: 

Held: 
May 14, 1984 
Room 90 
State House 
Trenton, New Jersey 

Assemblyman Wayne R. Bryant (Chairman) 
Assemblyman Paul Cuprowski 
Assemblyman Thomas P. Foy 
Assemblyman Edward K. Gill 
Assemblyman John W. Markert 

ALSO PRESEBT: 

Laurence A. Gurman, Research Associate 
Office of Legislative Services 
Aide, Assembly Transportation and Communications Committee 

* * * * * * 





John P. Sheridan 
Commissioner 

TABLE Of COiiTDTS 

New Jersey Department of Transportation 

Nicholas Capozzoli 
At~orney with 
Mudge Rose Guthrie Alexander & Ferdon 

Mark Meyers 
Vice President 
.Dilon Reed 

Thomas Boust 
·Public Finance Department 
Bear.Stearns 

l -16:MY 
17-SO:TDM 

* * * * * * 

Page· 

2 

34 

47 

47 





. ASSEMBLYMAN WAYNE R. BRYANT (Chairtnan): Good morning.. I am 

sorry for my tardiness. I have been here since 8: 30, but as you know 

in the State House you get taught up with a lot of different things. 

l thought the hearing was in the Majority Conference Room. Then I 

thought it was in the Minority Conference Room, so I kept running down 

there. They finally set up for the Aging hearing; that gave me a 

little hint that I wasn't in the right room. 

This . is a public hearing by the Transportation Committee, 

dealing with the concept of the Trust fund Authority. This portion of 

the public hear~ng is limited to the finan~ing of that concept. 

To begin with, I thought for the Committee and those who 

might be present-- There was some information distributed by. Mr. 

ferguson regarding why this might become a confusing issue. I think if 

we see that, we will allow the Commissioner, or other people who 

testify, to give us insight as to those comments. As one might know, 

Mr. fergu·son was head of the Governor's Management Improvement 

Program. At this time, Prince, would you run the film so everyone can 

see it? (At .which time Mr. Prince Wooten, Executive Assistant of the 

New Jersey Network, shows a video telecast) 

(The following comments, made by Mr. Robert ferguson, were taken from 

the aforementioned video telecast) 

The State of New Jersey is very, very fortunate in the 

sense that it is 'the only Triple A Rated State for 

bond purposes in the Northeast. It means a tremendous 

amount. And, if in fact, you take a look . at the 

Governor's proposed Budget, and look at what has 

happened to the debt service over the last four years, 

you will see · a rather dramatic increase, which will 

increase further this year. There is some point 

beyond which we cannot retain a Triple A Bond Rating. 

If we ~re going to sell these bonds, and call it moral 

obligation or any other term you would like to call 

it, we're selling ·state-obligation bonds in some 

form. It's going into the rating computations, and we 

can't afford to lose that Triple A Rating. So, j.t 
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se.ems to me, the-pay-as-you-go gasoline tax incre~se 

is the one . that makes sense. from the GMIP 

. staridpoint -- and I don't want to go back ·Ito that all 

the time -- the real objectives of the strategic 

i~s~ea raised by that group were: first of all, ·what 

is affordable? And, second, a long range-plan as 

·apposed to a short-range plan, and all the options 

that were suggested into the subjects studied there -­

and there were options in each case. lt ·was not "this 

is' the way you do it II or "this isn't." They all were 

designed ~ith this long-range affordability. in mind, 

tQ mainlain our solvency, to hold our bond ratings, 

and to. stop the steadily-increasing debt service. 

· . That 's why ·it seems to me that bonds are not the way 

to;~· in this kind of a situation." 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Thank you. We would like to than~ New 

Jerse·y Television for providing us with that piece of information. 
. . . . . 

Could. you· t•.ll ... vs·. the date that occurred? 

MR. WOOTEN: April 2J, 1984. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: At this time, I will ask Mr. Markert if 

·he wants tt) <question the television. I told him we would take a 

recording and take it back. (laughter) 

ASS.EMBLYMAN MARKERT: Since there is no possibility .of 

dialogue wi.th the gentleman who is recorded, I will just .let the 
' . ~ - ' 

statenaent's ~.stay as they are. Maybe we can clear up some of . the· 

inequiti~s· in the statements that were made through . testimony and 

questions of t~e Commissioner. So, M;r. Chairman, I'll just withdr.aw my 

request to qUestion the telev.ision set. 

I AS.SEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Thank you, Mr. Markert. 

,. 

At this time we are quite pleased to ·have· before us the 

Commissioner of Transportion, Mr. John Sheridan. 

COMIQ$SIONER JOHN P. SHERIDAN:· · Good morning, Mr. Chairman and 

Assemb~yman Markert. I he.ve ·with me Roger Nutt, who is Assistant 

Cornm~isi~oer for rinance and Administration with the Department. I 

thaoli,_;ybti-f()r this c;p·pottunity to appear before you to explain and to 
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discuss the New Jersey Transportation Trust fund Authority Act of 

1984. 

As you know, Governor Kean has made this transportation 

proposal a key element of his proposed 1984 - 1985 State Budget. It is 

a·program designed to build on New Jersey's strengths by addressing the. 

problems we face on our highways, bridges, and in public 

transportation. No day goes by when the life of each. and every 

resident- of this State isn't somehow affected by our transportation 

s-ystem. It is our responsibility as public officials -- you as 

legislators and me as Transportation Commissioner -- to do everything 

within our power to assure that our transportation system is in good 

order and safe condition. 

A sound transportation system is absolutely fundamental to 

the continued economic growth of our State and the quality of life of 

its residents. It was with that. in mind that this legislation was 

created. We believe it is program th~t lays the groundwork for a 

transportation network that will carr~ the State into the Twenty-first 

Century. The members of this Committee know all too well about the $42 

billion that the people of this State have invested in our 

transportation infrastructure. You also are well aware of the $3 

billion backlog of needy transport-ation projects we face; that backlog 

is made· up of projects that were needed five, ten, and fifteen years 

ago for the good of the State, but they remain unbuilt today. 

The reason for' this backlog is history. What we must . focus . 

on is the future. That is what this . program does. . It is a program 

designed to make a needed investment in New Jersey's future. 

I would now like to briefly describe the program for you, 

.after which I will try to answer any questions you may· have regarding 

the program. And, I certainly will answer any questions related to the 

telecast we have just seen. 

On the program side, the Trust fund would enable the State, 

in each of the next four years, to spend the following: 

$50 million to match all available federal public transit 

capital funds; 
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sse million to match all available federal highway and bridge 

capital. funds. I should point out, with respect to the $58 million, 

that· the bond issue that was passed last November actually provides the 

matching .fundS for much of the bridge dollars. That was· contained in 

the\bills that this Committee released the other day, Mt. Chairman. 

$62 million in 100 percent State funds on the State's, primary 

highways, Which will enable us to complete the many missing· links in 

our State· h~ghway system. On this point, I should note, that we get 

our money .fi'om the federal government in categories of funds. ·we have 
. . . . . . 

· a couple of·. categories where ·the federal program is particularly weak 

in comp~r~S()n. to New Jersey's needs. One of them is in primary area' 

. Route 55, :Ro:ute 90, Routes 30, 40, 70, 42, 47, and the ones going up to 

·Bergen ~o~nty, Routes 17, 3, and: 4 -- what you think of as the basic 

. high\\fBY system, outsid~ of . the interstate system. We . only get $48 

million a ye~u, and I can nam~ I four . or five ptojects a year that 

. everybody thinks. are going· to be 'done that will cost mote than that 

amount •. 

$.'~:5: .million on resurfacing will enable us to prolong the 

useful life :·:of ·our highways. I th,ink, in this regard, that we have an 

opportunity t~ actually save· hundreds of millions of dollars by doing 

some r$st;jrfacing at the appropriate stage of the life of a highway. 

$~5 million on a dollar-for-dollar substitution program with 

the cQ~.mties for the federal Aid Urban System Program in which they are 

now involved., will enable the counties and municipa'lities of this State .. 
. . ' . . 

to get aut Jr()m under the federal requirements and r~d. tape with which 

they mtist now contend. 

l would also like to point out that this legislation contains 

langfAlle · for. Minority Business Enterprises · and Female . Business 

Enterprises that. would, for the first time, impose mandatory minimum 

goals an the amount of money from this program that must be spent with 

busineaae~ owned and controlled by minorities and women. In the past 

these goals ·have applied to federal funds only. With the passage of 

·this 1Eigfsl.tion, that. distinction between federal and State funds 

. would disap~•ar and minority and women business owners woufd be the 

benefb:~lariiti. > 
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On the revenue side, whic'h is the focus of our hearing today, 

the proposed Transportation Trust Fund would generate $3.3 billion in 

State and Federal capital funds! for highway, bridge, and public 

transit projects during the next four years. 

Of this $3.3 billion, approximately $1 billion would be State 

funds and the remaining $2. J would be Federal funds for the capital _ 

progra~s at the Department of Transportation and New Jersey Transit. 

The Stqte 's share of t'hese funds would ·come from three 

sources: 
. -

$88 million would be appropriated annually from the general 

fund by the Legislature through the normal appropriations process; 

$25 million would be contributed ~nnually by -the three 

independent toll road authorities under agreements already reached with 

those authorities; 

$30 million would be ge~erated annually through an increase 

in heavy truck regist~ation fe~ls which is incorporated in this 

·legislation. 

These three revenue sources would provide $143 million 

annually which would be deposited in the Transportation Trust Fund. 

In turn, the Trust Fund Authority would sell ten~year bonds 

in each year of the four-year program, so that an average $230 million­

in State funds would be available for highways and public transit 

capital projects through State Fisdal Year 1988. 

This would enable the Department of Transportation ·and New 

Jersey Transit to complete long overdue highway, bridge, and public 
transit improvements throughout N~w Jersey, without prompting a toll 

increase, without jeopardizing New Jersey's Triple A credit rating, and 

most importantly, without raising taxes. 

- The contribution from the toll road authorities- will benefit­

the users of those highways, as well as the. three authoritie~ 

themsel~es, by helping to imprbVe the State highways that re~idents of 

New Jersey, who use the Parkway, Turnpike, and Expressway, must use to 

- .get to and from these toll roads. 

The proposed increase in . heavy - truck fees would place a 

"fairer share'' of the cost of building and maintaining our highways on 
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an industry . that will benefit from the improvements included in this 

program; at least as much as, and probably more than, any other single 

segment of our society. 

At present, New Jersey ranks 46th among the states in the 

level of user charges imposed on heavy trucks. With_ the proposed 

regist-ration. fee increase, it would rank 37th. By comparison, New 

York. ranks lrd and Pennsylvania 15th when ·all user fees and taxes are 

taken into consideration. 

Of the $230 million in State funds generated annually by this 

program, New .· Jersey Transit would receive $50 million and the 

Depar~ment -tif·. Transportation would receive $180 million. Matching 

thoSf! funds .with every available federal· dollar would produce about 

$800 IJlillion a year . for capital spending on the State'$ highways, 

t)ricf9~,- and public transit system in each of the next four . years. 

·I ·.bel~ eve the most important part of this program, Which is 

key to solv:ing our long .... term transportation problems in this State, 

· lies in the fact that we can implement it without a tax increase. 

We c.an do that because of the two principles on which the 

T:rust fQnd l~glslation is based: 

F'irst, over 'the life of the four-year program, more than half 

· of the money . would be spent . on a pay-as-you-go basis.· . This· is a 
departure f~om. past transportation funding programs in New Jer.sey when 

we r~iied .. almost entirely on long-term general obligation bond 

finaile-ing •. 

Sec·ond, the creation of the Trust . fund · Authority as the 

financ;:ing mec~en~sm would enable the Stete to sell appropriations bonds 

to .. supplemeht the pay-as-you-go capital at a relatively low net 

inci:.~as" cost to the taxpayers of New Jersey. for example, the 1968 

traf')S·p~rtatlon bonds cost the taxpayers 79 percent of principle in net 

interest cost:s.. The 1979 bonds are expected to cost the taxpayers more 

in interest· than the. actual $475 million in bonds sold.· By cQrnparison, 

the Trust. r~nd bonds would coat only 36 percent in net. interest costs 

of the 'tot.-~: $472 million in bonds that would be sold. 

A$: l mentioned at the outset of . this statement, . the 

Tr.,naportl.or{lrust- fund is about New Jersey's future. We estimate the 
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projects :will generate more than 150,000 jobs as a result of the 

construction• And, I believe the· :economic growth these projects will 

generate is incalculabl~. 

This program is designed I to build on New Jersey's strengths 
I 

by recogn1z1ng its weaknesses and providing a program that will prepare 

our State for the future. 

Thank you very much. As. I said, I would be happy to answer 

any questions. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Thank you, Mr. Commissioner. let me ask· 

you one question. Is the Transportation Authority intending to fu11d 

the total State transportation capital needs? 

COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: :Does it address every single ne~d 

· that I could identify? The answer is no. What it is intended to do, 

is to do as much a_s we can possibly do in the next four years, and at 

the same timer to attack identifiable needs. 

ASSEMBLYMAN .BRYANT: You might have answered ·my second 

question. Does that mean we are :not going to reduce funding for New 

Jersey Transit during this time? ·. 

COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: We are not _going to do what? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Reduce funding. In oth~r words, by 

. doing this program, we· will not have reduced funding in terms of the 

needs of the New Jersey Department :of Transportation? 

COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: I'm sorry, Mr. Chairman, 1 st.lll 

don't understand. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: I am asking, is general State fljnding:..­

If we build in this mechanism with the general State funding from the 

New Jersey Transportation Department, will the funding be reduced 

because we have now adopt~d this n~w--

COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: (interrupting) Would our operating · 

program or operating budget be reduced? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Yes. 

COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: The answer ·is absolutely no. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Would it be increased? 

COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: We have requested a small increase in 

the Department of Jran~portation' s operating budget this year and a 
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relatively small increase in N~w Jersey Transit's operating budget. We 

would expect to have similar operating request increa·ses _ over the 

follr~year period. 

· ASSEMBLYMAN ·BRYANT: Also the language. and the developm~nt. 

f70ncept of the Authority refers to the fixing of tolls essentially by 

the Authority.. Could you explain to me why the Authority should fix 

tolls? 

COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: We don't believe that language . is 

·necessary. We have already agreed with the Senate-- As a matter of 

fact, l. believe that the bill has already been amended to delete that 

provis~on, .· and . we would ·certainly agree that provision could be 

deleted•. 

-ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Go ahead, Mr. Markert. I'll let you ask 
. ' 

~:t·co\Jple _()f _questions, and then I '11 ask a few more. 

. .·. •.:.. . MS~Bl YHAN MARKERT: I think, Mr. Chairm11n, that. you might 
- find·:'.~:~_t,tti.n--th,at package of amendnients, that we are .already addressing 

th1e ·:queE~t-ion you asked. I think l have already submitted· those 
'. ··. ·, ._· '·· 

·am~nctmente ~o: you·· and the Committee staff members·, for consideration at 

the .. frn~e, :~~Ji the bUl is taken under consj,deration. As I stated, 

· .. t.he~{~~~-~~;'j~~~sibly be one -or _two other_ amendments that are coming •. 

: :1/ .. \+/Oi..dd like to tty to also ascertain some of the other 
·, '· .. : .. :··· . ' 

pr~~:~,fl\~ ··~tij@t',. ··1 ·t~ink, we: are solving with this· particular bill. I 

.· thlnl(, -~t : ... t6:fs) ·point in time I -would like to get into the testimony as 

.stated'.on tbe;.'ielevision. I·would·app.reciate it, Commissioner; if you 

. could .· explaiM.: ·the di rference between the· point . of, opinion there and 

what: .~J as$ame/ie the correct facts, or at le$9t those that would not 

, . • affec·~::·:o~~- ~d ratings~ . . 

. cOMMlsSIONER SHERIDAN: l would just say that unfortunately i I 
. . 

did. :not h~ve·;·'ftle. opportunity to. hear this before today or to talk to 
- . . . . . ' . 

•. Mr •• :f'ergusan, :' to give him a briefing on the programo I would, think 

, thaf )-ihet .. ~e are talking about _ -- our proposal -- is very consistent 

with ·. the recommendations of the Governor's Management Improv·ement . 

P-to9f~~- ·; •t;\a,t they . suggested was that we mve. substantially toward 

• I • pay~4~-FybQ:.j~~. and that is what this program does.· 
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for the first time in the history of New Jersey, at least in 

the last 20 years, we have a program that is more than 50 percent 

pay-as-you~go. As you know, just going back to the bond issues in the 

sixties and the one in 1979, we have been borrowing 100 percent of our 

capital needs, or close to 100 percent. The first time that changed in 

any measure was in Governor Keen's Budget last year. This time, with 

this program, we are moving to more than 50 percent pay-as-you-go. I 

think we have substantially reflected the thoughts of the Governor's: 

Management Improvement Program in fashioning -this program. We 

are deeply concerned that we have a program that does not adverse! y 

affect the Triple A Credit Rating. The Governor has been absolutely 

insistent that what we devise should have no impact on that. We are 

satisfied, after talking to former Treasurer Biederman, present 

Treasurer Horn and his staff, at least three Wall Street firms, and 

after preliminary meetings with the rating agencies, that there is not 

going to be any adverse impact on the State's Triple A Credit Rating. 

As a matter of fact, one of the credit agencies indicated informally 

that they thought this program -- because it added some discipline to 

the process -- would have the potential of actually strengthening our 

credit situation in the State. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Let me ask you a question. I think the 

points I understood that Mr. ferguson was making on April 24th were, 

number one, that we should pay-as-we-go and, number two, that, any type 

of lending, regardless of how we couch it, whether we call it a· moral 

obligation bond, revenue bond, or general obligation bond-- I think 

the point that I understood was that affects your credit rating. Are 

you saying that you disagree with that? 

COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: No, 1 think what he is saying is that 

if you have borrowing, the borrowing will be taken into consideration 

when bonds are rated. We think that these borrowings would certain~y 

be taken into consideration. What I am sa~ing is tha~ we have 

carefully · evaluated our needs in the transportation area; we have 

discussed it with those people who are the most knowledgeable in this 

area. We are satisfie~, after looking out over the four-year period 

and knowing what the other State needs are, that this is a manageable 
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amount· of bonding and a sensible way to do. it. We don't believe there 

will be. any adverse effect on the State's Triple A Credit Rating. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT:. That is not to say Mr. ferguson does not 

have knowledge in this area? You are hot relating to that? 

COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: Mr. ferguson is a very knowledgeable 

individual. I'm not saying ·that he is not. I am just s~ying that we 

have been mere intimately involved with this program, and we have 

·discussed if with the people we need to discuss it ·with. We're 

satisfied. We have gone very much in the .direction that the GMIP has 

sug~sted. · As a matter of fact, I wish that I knew this was going to 

· · be·· a topic ·because I would have reviewed that report, but I think you 

. will -f~nd; when you review that report' that one of the recommendations 

was indeed: a mechanism similar to' what we have proposed' in order to 

' get· <l9t' front and be able to do a lot in a. hurry. 

ASSEMBLYMAN .BRYANT: . Th,at is not the total topic I just 

understood, and I had not seen it before rriysel f.. He had mentioned some 

things ·abo~t the Authority and I thought this Committee ~hould have 
. . . 

information· '.from all sources. Let me ask you af'Other question~ 

COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: (interrupting) As far-~ I might--

. I am ,~aorry. Go· ahead. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: · I want to ask a qu~stion because I know 

a Itit··-of ~'imes· we compare them with our 1979 bond acts and such. · What 

would b~ the length of· those bonds? When we _start talking about 

interest·:..;;. Ish •t is generally that we float . those bonds for 30 years? 

·COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: Yes. I mean the reason-.;. 

ASSEMBLYMAN . ·BRYANT: (interrupting) General obligation 

bonds? 

COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: (continuing) .The reason we have. a 

net interest cost that is much lower than the way we have done business 

in th •. past is twofold: One, we are selling shorter. term bonds ~­

ten•yetlr bonds instead . of twenty or even·· thirty-year bonds ~- and 

secor\Ct·of ·Bl.i; because this·fund·will have earnings on the money in the 

fund'o. · · 

\?~~·~··r 
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ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: What would the interest be, if in fact, 

the State decided to do general obligation bonds at ten years as 

opposed to thirty years and use the huge surplus to match those bonds? 

Then would not the comparison be far in difference from what you are 

speaking of? 

COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: I agree; it would not be so far in 

difference. Because of the earnings on this bond, it would still be 

less costly this way, even though the int_erest rate would be ever so 

slightly higher for Double A bonds -- which we expect that these would 

sell at than Triple A bonds. That is 'more than offset by the 

earnings in this fund. Sot we think it is a better way. 

I might just comment on Mr. ferguson's other point-- . Our 

view of it is-- What he is suggesting is a substantial gasoline tax~ 

So that everybody understands what . is being proposed when they say 

"total 100 percent pay-as-you-got" it would take a six cent gasoline 

tax increase to provide $230 million. We don't think it makes sense to 

go to a tax when you have a way that does not require the tax. More 

important than that, I have talked to 80 or more Legislators about this 

program, one on one, ·or one on two. And, if I have had two or three 

sugg~st to· me that a gasoline tax is the . way to go, I would say that 

would be a lot; some of those have changed their minds since· the 

first time I talked to them. Given the fact that we have a surplus · 

budgetary situation and given the fact that ·we had a sales tax and 

income tax increases last year, there isn't any realistic possibility, 

at this time, of passing a gas tax increase. I would say there is one 

other important reason why I don't think it shouid be passed. The 
\ 

users of the transportation system -- until this program goes in place 

· ;.._ will have a situation where more money is coming in from present 

user fees, gas tax, and registration fees, than is being spent on 

transportation. for the first time in probabJy 20 ·years, the books 

will finally be balanced in that regard under this program. 

The figures are roughly these: If you take the Department of 

· Transportation's budget of approximately $400 million and you add to it 

the $230 mil~ ion that we are: talking about in capital' you have a total 

of $630 million~~ At the present time, registration fees and the gas 
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tax rates are somewhere around $475 million. If you add $25 million to 

that from the toll roads and $30 million from the truckers, you will 

see that for the first time user fee revenues. and ' expenditures on. 

transportatiQry · have. come into balance. I think it would be quite· 

inequitable to charge the users until those accounts are brought into 

balance. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Six cents seems to scare everybody to 

death on gasoline tax. I don't profess to know a lot about financing, 

. but it would seem to me,. that if we use the same figures of $25 million 

coming . .from the Toll Road Authority, ·saa million from general revenue; 

and $,0: frem truckers --. assuming that · was the formula -- then you 

would;;:t)e ·ialkihg ·about a gas tax around three cents as opposed to six 

'"cent-s~~·.· Wouldn''t that be more .reas~nable? 
COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: i If what you are talking about is 

·using the same three revenues--

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: (in'terrupt"ing) That is the fu·ndamental 

basis of this, so I'm assuming--

. ·cOM41SSIONER SHERIDAN: (interrupting) You're right, if it 

is $88 million, $30 million, and _$25 million~ But what are you 

· saying?. We. have the truckers screaming now at the proposal .. because of 

the $30. million, and you're recommending, on top of that, we. add· three 

cents to -'t.he.· .gas? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: (interrupting) No, I wasn't 

recommending that. What I was saying was that when Mr. Ferguson said, 

"Pay-as-ypu-.go," I thought he might have thought of a· system where. if 

you 'had a state with a thrf38 percent dedicated tax,. you could still 

balance ·it out with the. other ~inds of items you have here -... as 

.opposed to a six percent tax. 

COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: I understand basically what he is 

saying. I Just think it is completely unrealistic • 

. ASSEMBLYMAN . BRYANT: . Let me as.k you another. question. Will 

the Authority also be responsible for New Jersey's total transportation 

- capital needs? 

CQMMISSJONER SHE:RIDAN: When you say "be responsible~'-- We 

see the· Aut~oi~ity as bas'ically a bond-selling mechanism. Th.ey will 
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have no role in terms of project selection; all of that will remain 

exactly as it is now. All we e.xpect that Authority to do is sell the 

bonds to finance the capital program. The $230 million is what we need 

in capital over the. next four years. So if the question, Mr. Chairman, 

is, will we need more rooney · than that? I think the answer to you is 

that over the next four years, we will not. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Ok. Then it does address the total 

capital needs for those four years. 

COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: Mr. Nutt is pointing out something to 

me that is very important, and I don't want to mislead you, so let me 

just explain. There are some capital needs that are not fully 

addressed in this program, that we know are likely to have to be 

addressed in the four years. I can mention two areas: The Meadowlands 

up in North Jersey and the Waterfront in North Jersey. 

There is one source of funds that has not been calculated 

into the $3.3 billion, and that is, the moneys available from the Port 

Authority of New York a~d New Jersey under Governor Kean's and Governor 

Cuomo's programs o Basically while the calls on that money include 

~ewer, water, and tr~;insportation, we are hopeful that some of the money 

will be available for transportation projects not in this. $3.3 billion 

program. The re~son they are not in here is that. there are studies 

still going on, which haven't specifically identifi~d what t:he projects 

would be that would need to be funded. We w.ould have that resource 

potentially available. Those are two of the areas where we think some 

of the funds would be spent. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Could you provide this Committee with 

information, in terms of those capital needs th~t are either projected 

or in planning which would not be covered by this fund? 

COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: The problem, Mr. Chairman, is exactly 

that. for instance, on the Waterfront, we have an eighteen-month study 

going on, that we are three to four months into o We don't know what 

projects are going to be· recommended. We don't know whether it is 

going to recommend ·the transit project or a combination transit and 

highway project. Until we have the projects identified and make a 

decision about which ones we think make ·sens·e, it is impos~ible to 
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. ' 

quantify the capital .needs. That's why· we left it out of the $3.3 

billion program. At any rate, we're talking probably about the end of 

the four-year period. lt is not something we are talking ab~ut in the 

next year or two. ! 

i 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: So you are saying that the Department 
I 

could not provide us with information in terms of other cap~tal needs 

that are not addressed by the Authority? 

COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: Those are the. only major ones that I 

am aware of. for instance, a light rail system might be what is 

recommended on the Water front. I would have to know where it begins, 

where ·it ends, and what it is going to look like, before we 
1

Could give 

you a realistic estimate of the cost.. I think the reason we! left them 

· 'off t.he lis~ was just that; we are not able at this time to quantify 
. . . . 

them in a realistic way. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: The only reason I asked that is, I 

think in order for me to make an informed decision, we might need to 

have a larger ·program than is even suggested. I think it is helpful to 

the Legislature to know what is at least in the works, even if we have 

ballpark fig~res. It would seem to me that if the Department is 

working on projects in some vain ...;_ regardless whether we have a dollar 

figure for them or whether they are actually going through ~- that we 

·could at least get a list of those projects which are outside of the · 

·vein of this program. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Mr. Chairman, I think what I heard was 

an answer to that question. I'm not sure, but I thought I heard the 

Commissioner state that these studies that are going on will be able to 

· give u.s what 'projects might become available 

I think it would'be impossible at four months into a program-- I would 

not want someone . to speculate so · far out and to have that type of 

information in my hands,· because it certainly would not be anything yqu 

caul~ hang your· hat on. I would rather see' a program studied to a 

point where ,we. could have: facts and· not just speculations. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: As long as that satisfies you, that's 

' fine. What·. I Elm saying, as the Chairman, is that I feel I have a need 

to know if, . in fact, I ·arn projecting a Transportation Trust fund that 
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will end up covering all the capital costs, even if I know what 

projects are in the· "think stage." That would be helpful for me to 

make some type of decision. 

COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: Mr. Chairman, I think what you are 

asking for we can provide you with, as long as it is with the 

·understanding that these are very preliminary figures and they. may turn 

out to be quite different than what we are talking--

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: (interrupting) I would expect .that you 

would qualify it in those terms and I understand and accept the 
·.r 

information in that light. 

Mr. F oy, would you like to ask some questions? ,, 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: I want to see your wish list. l'm sure you 

have one. When a municipality. prepares its capital budget over fiv~ 

years, they put a lot of things in it that they know, even at the end 

of those five years, they are not going to have the wherewithal t() 

complete. I want an idea as to the thinking of the Department with 

respect to its prioritization of projects throughout the State of Ne~ 

Jersey. I will be quite candid with you; I am a South Jersey 

Legislator and I have grave concerns about how South Jersey is .. going to 

be treated under this program. In the past, there have been problems 

regarding the allocatio~ of funds regionally throughout the State. It 

is no secret, John, I am a New Jersey partisan, and I want to see to it 

that, even on the wish list, some of our Christmas wishes will -come 

true someday, as far as what the Department of Transportation and this 

Trust Fund Authority views as the important transportation network 

:throughout the State. I think it is pretty clear, in t~rms of 

available land and development, that the western and southern portions 

. of the State of New Jersey are the areas· where the opening-up of 

highways will foster economic development and business growth. So, 

there is a subtle or not so subtle message there about where my 

concerns lie with respect to it. 

In addition, I'm sure you have been deluged with concerns from 

the trucking industry and its employees, as I have. I am inundated 

with letters about it, and in reading those letters, they make some. 

sense with respect to the fact that there is going to be a fairly 
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dramati~ :ilftl)act after a long - time of maybe coasting -- no question 

abc»ut.· _that. I am wondering, · if through the use of some of the --

sur.plO$•-

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: (interrupting) This is on financing. 

The trucke.'re are ~oming in on the 21st, and if you could reserve that--

1 think it would be unfair to the Commissioner. to have ·to be prepared 

to speak on that. __ · 
. . ' . . 

ASSEMBLYMAN roY: lf we are restricting this just to finance, 

I 'li hold •- that for the truckers' meeting. 

·cOMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: With respect to your first question, 

I think that your sense about the future is probably quite right. _ I 

would think ·that, in many ways, we have a mature _ system in the 

northeastern part of the State, a well- 'identified one for the most 

part, ·except _ fot the two major growth areas that I mentioned -- the 

MeadowlandS .,.arid the Waterfront. We know what needs to be done. Where 

we :don't k~: ~xactl~ what needs to be done is in those areas in the 

. ·Sta~e: th&a~ ·are· growing rapidly, . and they are, -basically, Ocean and 

· Bur:J:~toir{.'in. · the south, - and ·Sussex, Warren, and Hunter don_ in the 

west:~~·> j -~~~bit::: SOuth Jersey h$& been treated fairly under this ptogram, 

but:· i._<·~hi~:;,t_.Q.ne of the things that we -ought to be _ looking at is the 
. . . : ·. ~ . . . : ' :' '·: ~.. . . . . . . . . . 

··next ·_~n~r~~~o'tl of projects for those ar·eas of the Stat~ where there is 

--- a lot of potential growth. Just to mention two-- I have had some 

requests, fo:r · instance, with respect to a South Jersey project that 

would :ba-sically run from the Delaware Memorial Bridge to connect with 

- the Atlantic City Expressway and also a project E;~outh of the terminus 

of Route 55, from Port· Elizabeth to Cape May. What I have said 

publicly and privately is that I think if this program passes, the two 

·studies that have been asked for ought -to be_ done. We ought to st~rt 

thinki.,g aboUt.·_ What the future holds. 

What I have said· simultaneously, though, is if this program 

or something substantially similar to· it, does not pass, then I can't 

· think about the next generation of projects · when we have · massive 

·_·missing li-nks in the existing system that need to be completed -- Route 

· 5.5 being :~J-prilllary example and the Route 38 dualization in your area as 

_ • anothiJr ~~i~-~ I hope that addresses your question. 
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We can provide you with our seven year capital. program, and 

I would also point out to you that in the New Jersey Transportation 

Trust Fund, some of the needs beyond four years are left to the period 

beyond four years, and they are so listed in here. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: One other thing, in terms of. your 

projections with respect to this, does anybody have a pro forma as to 

what-- You know, you mentioned 150,000 jobs in here. Have. your 

economists extrapolated to the point that they estimate what annual 

income that may generate· for New Jersey, and what taxes that annual 

income may generate with respect to either sales, income, or things 

like that? 

COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: I am--

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: (interrupting) I am just curious. You 

know, if we are going to create a lot of jobs, that is certainly going 

to help the economy. I would like to see some projections with respect 

to that. 

COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: What we have used is the United 

States Department of Transportation's rule of thumb in estimating the 

number of jobs available. That is where that 6,000 jobs per $100 

million worth of construction comes from. 

We are aware of some private work that is being done, but 

our own internal staff ·has . not generated any speci fie . income figures, 

or anything like that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Getting back to what we. requested ih 

terms of other projects, do you know when we can get that information? 

COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: Within a week. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Within a week? That would be helpful. 

let me ask you something else. Since the establishment of 

the Co~mission on Capital Budget and Planning, the State has had a near 

perfect record on approval for bond issues. Is the. Administration 

reluctant to trust the voters on this ·issue? 

COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: No. I think, for instance, given the 

present atmosphere, a transportation bond issue would pass. But 

mech.anism for the long term that does not depend on. the specific 

situation of the moment _...; the overall economic climate that can put. 
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our business on a businesslike basis, so we know that every year the 

funds. ~re going to be there, and we are not planning. projects that 

can't ~ funded once we have done the design ·work. 

Let me give you an example that I think is a perfect 

illus~ration of th~ problem we have had in Nsw Jersey: Route 18, in 

Monmouth County, was partially built with. 1968 bond funds. The 

remaining sections· were fully designed with 1968 bond· funds.. The 

assumption was, when Dave Goldberg and then Governor Hughes_campaigned 

for .~·he '68 bend fund, that there would be a subsequent bond issue in 
,. . '. 

1972. That bond issue failed. The '73 bond issue failed.. ·The '75 

bond issue failed. We didn't get a bond issue until 1979. . In the 

meantime~ there was no pay-as-yotJ.;..go capital, and, essentially, the 
. - ' . . I 

-Department was without funds for 11 major portion of that period. 

Route 18 -~ and I have the plans on my desk -- that we are· 

talking about building under this program, was fully designed in 1972. 

A 3.3 mile section that could have been built for $15 million is now 

going to. cost $60 million; .and guess what? We have to redesign it 

· because the federal criteria, in terms of safety and construction, have 

dramatically changed over the last 12 year period. So, what we 

essentially wound up doing was, we wasted a portion of those 1968 bond 

funds·. ln· the meantime--. 

:ASSE'MBLYMAN BRYANT: (interrupting) Corrimission~r, you are 

convincing me to vote for stable funding, such as a dedicated gasoline 

tax~ You are saying we need this kind of stable funding. 

Maybe my understanding is wrong concerning this prograrn, or 
Authority. It is a four-year program, so it is not ad infinitum, and 

it is a ten-year payout. That· does not address what you just said to 

me, in terms of our need to have this ongQing, stable funding. That is 

why ·r. guess· I· get cdnfused. At one point we talk about long-range 
. . 

stable_ funding' and it would seem to me the best approach to that would 

be same t~pe. :;~f _ dedicated._ gasoline tax. On the other hand, we are 

talking about _·CJ()ing with the general obligation bonds, where the voters 

might ·have some say, and in some way that is not .stabl.e even though the 

:<. p~bg*~ only' l,;allts for four :Yeats'. 



COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: Well, it is true, it· is a four-year 

program, but it provides a mechanism that, assuming it will work the · 

way we all think it will work, the Legislature could easily fund at the 

end of four years for a second stage. They could· easily fund it 

permanently. ·They ·could fund it for a second stage, with the thought 

th~re would be a third st~ge. 

One· of the reasons why we picked four years was that. the 

Federal program -- now, we · are talking about a transportation program 

that is basically two-thirds Federal and one-third State-- One of the 

problems with taking it b(!yond four years is ~- and we could probably 

have made a five or six year program with the same money -- the federal 

program -- the Federal funding -- is likely to change over that period 

of time. The reason for · this is· that the interstate system is nearly 

built-out. We would think that toward the end of the four year period, 

we are going to see a shift in priorities at the Federal level that we 

will have to adjust to at the State level. 

So, I can't tell you that in the fifth year we will need $230 

million. It might be less. It might be more. And, to design a 

program that goes headlong past th~t period, in my mind -- given that 

fact doesn't make a lot of Sense. 

The other thing is, our cost estimates and our schedules, 

once you get past four years, are just not as reliable as they have to 

be in order to have a specific planning tool. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: So, this Authority will be created 

forever, is that correct? · 

COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: What I am saying is, there has been 

some talk about a sunset provision, or a review period. We have 

proposed a mechanism that could be continued. Obviously, it won't have 

much value unless it is refunded at the end of the four-year periods, 

at some level; but, I don't know what that level is, and l don't think 

anybody in the Leqislature does either. I think ~e need to get closer 

to that deadline before we decide how to refund it, and at what level. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Where I might be getting somewhat 

perplexed is, I know both the Treasurers have talked about bonding and 

they have worried about . out rating, if they are general obligation 
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bonds. · Yet,- there _ are ·a couple of proposal~ that are coming up this 

·year for. future bonding. Knowing the need for tr-ansportation, I ~an' t 

understan(f why that didn •t take priority over the other bonding we are 

talkfng about and general 'obligation bonds. This is not a· scenario 

where ·we, or the Administration, do· not want to· go out for obligation 

bQnds. lt seems to be a retreat; that they don't consider 

transportation the roost necessary thing to go to the voter about. 

· COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: We want to get away from the hit or 

miss pr-ocess of .general obligation bonds. It doesn't lend itself to an 

ongo~ng- pr:ogram, such as we have in transportation, where the needs are · 

annual. 

. ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: This program really addresses backlog' 

and what· I am saying is, if you develop a program with general 

·_ obligation bonds to deal with the backlog, we could be talking about 

: whether 'it would be a gasoline tax or another type of stable funding·. · 

COMMIS.SlONER SHERIDAN: I guess, Mr •. -Chairman·, my only answer 

to. you _is, we think we have a good program; one that makes sense; one · 

. that ·can work for . four years; and, if it .·works the. way,. we think it 

will, the L~gislature will be only too willing to refund it .at .the end 

'of the four years. in. order to continue it past that time. 

From my perspective in the Department, I want to get off. the 

roller . coaster of funding we have had with . general obligation bond~ • 

. We hact a lot of money in '68; we were down in the troth _for 11 years, a 

substa-ntial part of that period without funding; we had a little money 

in 1979; and, here we are, four years later, and. we are out of funds. 
We are_ not· only 100 percent out of State funds, we are out of matching 

funds, ·and we need tho~e funds, July 1st. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Let me ·ask you another question. The 
. ~ . 

Governor's office must have ·considered alternatives before setting .up 

the Transportation Trust Authority. Can you tell me what those 

alterhativ~s ~e~e, and why they were discard~d in favor of the 

Authority?· · 

·gOMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: I can't speak-;_ 
-- . .. 

·. A.S.SEHBLYMAN BRYANT:· Dr. your Department -- whoever? 
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COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: You know, we certainly thought about 

al tern~ti ves. It was just logical to think about another bond issue. 

I rejected that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Did you think about matching funds, or 

increasing truck revenues and toll road authority funds; setting 

general appropriations at a set fee; and maybe setting the bonds at 10 

years? 

COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: That is a lot of things at one time. 

I am not sure what you are asking. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Exactly what you have in your pfogram.~ 

COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: Did we think of that? · .. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Increasing truck route fees; getting 

money from the toll road authorities, and also an $88 million 

appropriation from the Legisature; then having a general obligation 

bond for ten years; that is exactly the same as having a general 

obligation bond and having the voters vote on it. It would still leave 

you with a stable $3.3 billion. 

COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: I think I have already explained why 

1 was not pe·rsonally in favor of general obligation bonds. I want to 

put in place, if we possibly can, a long-term mechanism. That doesn't 

. provide it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: So, you would be disagreeable to having 

any sunset on this Autho.rity? 

COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: No, as long as the sunset, or review 

period, is out quite a few years, I don't have a problem with it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: How many years? 

COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: Out long enough to-- I think I would 

need some advise from our investment bankers on that quest ion. Out 

long enough to make sure it does not jeopardize the bonding provision 

we have to put in place. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Well, maybe I misunderstand that, 

because you are telling me that if it is out long enough to pay off the 

bonds and not jeopardize the mark•t• it would do the same thing as a 

general obligation bond, except it 'didn't go to the voters -- because 

you capped it and sunset it at that 'po~nt. 
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COMMiSSIONER SHERIDAN:· It won't do the ·same thing, because 

the .Leg~~la~ure, at the end of the four-year period can r'efund this 

peripd, and extend, simultaneously, the sunset provision. So, it is 

not the same thin·g. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: If, in fact, the sunset provb;;ion you 

agree to does that, I am saying it would be tantamount to the same 

thing, because of the sunset --unless we did something that would not 

continue it. During that four year period, whil~ we are doing the · 

backlog, we could take other actions, whether they be a gasoline tax, 
. . 

other ·bond i:saues, or other general appropriations, and we could do the 

same· thin9• · That is always a possibility, if, in fact, you agree to a 

sunset. 

COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: I think you have completely lost· me. 

I heard ·a lot of things, but I don •t· know what you are saying • 

ASSEMBL.YMAN BRYANT: Assuming you agree to a suns.et, a sunset 

basically says that at some point in time it stops. 

COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: Yes. What I am saying is, if you 

want to put in a sunset that is out 20 years or so--

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: (interrupting) That's what I was trying 

to get, to~ You are talking about 20 years'? 

COMMISSIONER. SHERIDAN: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: !Oh, okay. And, what would it· do during 

the period of time following the first 20 years? 

COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: If you wanted to have a review period 

-- I think that basically the review period is built iri, because if it 

doesn't work the way I see it working, I don't think the Legislature 

will refund it after four years. What I am saying is, give us a shot. 
. . 

. Let us show you we can do it. let us show you that it is a sensible 
. . . 

··mechanism that ·will work well from a financing point of view, that the 

projects will move, ·the Department of Transportation of New Jersey can 

produqe them, and at the end of four years; I think the· Legislature 

will dectde to refund this mechanism .• 

ASSEMBLYMAN fOY: Mr. Chairman, 1 have a question • 

. 'coinmissiorutr; when, for example, we reformed the Workers. Compensation 

law in ·'l98tl;, we required that after a certaj.n period of· time they 
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report, with respect to the actual workings and the progress of what 

was raformed, to the Legislature, with recommendations ftom the 

Commissioner -- in this case that could be from you -- as to what 

changes should be made, or whatever. Would you be amenable to 

something like that, insofar as the legislation goes? You would have 

to come back to us after the four year period, or whatever, and lay it 

all out. That's \'that they did with Workers Compensation. We have made 

some changes since that time in the Worke.rs Camp law: Where things 

they anticipated would work were not working, we changed them. 

COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: Sure. I think that is a legislative 

prerogative at any time. 

ASSEMBLYMAN fOY: It seems to me it is sensible. You know, 

this is new territory, to a certain extent, and we are going to have to 

be flexible about how we approach it. I think we have to build in some 

sort of obligation on your part to give us an accounting. 

COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: I don't have any problem with that. 

I don't have any problem, for instance, with annual reports on our 

progress, or anything like that. I would be surprised if, at the end 

of the four-year period, the Legislature thought it ·was working fairly 

well but saw some things that ought to be corrected. Or if the 

Commissioner of Transportation saw some things ought to be corrected, I 

would be totally surprised if, before it was funded for a second time, 

there were not some changes made at that time. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Let me ask you a·question then. When we 

get to refunding, maybe I get confused again. I understand when we go 

into this program, after the four years, we are · going to pay $88 

million through general appropriations for from 10 to 14 years -- or _ 

whatever that period is. How dO we refund that after four years? 

COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: I think that is a legislative 

decision to be made. It might be another $88 million from 

appropriations, assuming the level is the same -- $230 million; I think 

it could be any number of things. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Okay. Let's lake it from four to ten, 

or four to fourteen years. We· are still spending $88 million. Where 

is the refunding mechanism that we get from the Legislature? We would 

have to add more money, I would imagine. 
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COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: · Yes. That is what I am · saying, 

re fuaid it. I mean furld it a second time • Add some additional money. i 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: More than $88 million? 

COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: No. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: . You are dedicating $88 million? . 

COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: When I say $88 million, ·I am talking 

about an additional $88 million to maintain the same level. 

ASSEMBLYMAN-BRYANT: Let me askyou another question. 

COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: (interropting) My finance ·man is 

telling me. that -- for how many year·s? -- in ·order to extend -it for 

· . three year$, the. total a111ount of new money needed would be $35 or $36 

milliQn~ 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Is that the same level of funding? 

. COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: · Yes, to extend it for three years 

beyond the four -years. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: · Okay. Extend what? I am confused now • 

. Extend·_ our general revenues another $88 million? 

. Catf4_ISSIONER SHERIDAN: No, if. you wanted to continue the. 

progr~ ·at'· the. $230 million ievel, assuming that was the right number 

'91. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: So, in other . words, for the last · 10 

years, ·we would have to have--

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: You are doing it for four years,.· right? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Well, there is. a question as to· whether 

it is for 10 years or 14 years. If. it is 14 years, there will be an 

additiof1al 10 _years. . 

. -ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: With an additional payoff • 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: I am not sure. No one has an~we.red that 

· que"'tiQr'l"for ·me ___ yet. 

· ~OMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: -The question has been answered. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Whether it is 10 years or 14 years? 

COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: The bonds are not all going to be 

sold the first year. They are 10-year bonds: some bonds the first 

year, some the second year, some the third year, and some the fourth 

year. But, the'$88-million has to be available for a 14 year period. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: That's right. That's my understanding. 

Now, we are taiking about an additional $36 for 10 years,. adding $36 to 

· $88 -- okay? 

COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: That's right. What we are saying is 

you could do it for another three years at the $230 million level. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: You would just be issuing larger bonds 

during that period of time? 

COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: You would have to issue more bonds. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Another set of 10-year bonds. 

COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: It would still be mostly 

pay-as-you-go, but there will be some additional bonds. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Do you think it would be prudent for the 

taxpayers of the State of New Jersey, with such a large surplus, to pay 

it all at one time in the first year? That way, they will incur no 

debt. 

COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: I think it is impossible for me to 

answer that question. I don't know or understand all of the calls on 

that money. I don't know the size of the surplus. I underst~nd there 

has been $600 or $700 million in requests with respect to those surplus 

funds. It is impossible for me to make that judgment. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: I understand the same thing, but it 

seems to me that we had increased in almost every area, even before we 

found out there was a large surplus. Transportation . is such an 

overriding need that in order to match Federal dollars and open up the 

economy for New Jersey -- and at the same time not tax ·or further 

burden our taxpayers -- it would seem to me, since everybody is telling 

me that" this is such an important thing to do, and we have ignored it 

for so long -- and I agree with that, as Chairman of Transportation 

that ·if we have this one opportunity this year, it would be a prudent 

way to spend .the surplus. 
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. CoMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: l can't answer that question. I 

think the person who has to answer that question is the person who has 

111n un9erstanding of ·all the. other calls on that fTK)ney. It wouldn't be 

true ~f there were another greater, or equally great, need. But, I 

don't·know what they·are,·or what they might be. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: from your pofnt of view, is there a 

·. great~er ·need? 

. COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: I have to admit, '1 have a very narrow 

focus. 

ASSEMBLYMAN fOY: Maybe what we need is a way to bring in 

some· Execu~1:~e participation, by having the Governor pledge to dedicate 

a portion o( whatever surplus exists through thf! balance of his term, · 

· or terms, ae the case may be, as a contribution to this • 

AsSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: It will probably be terms. 

ASSEMBLYMAN fOY: Well, that 's possible. Maybe ·we need 

dedicated funding from the Administration as part of the contribution, 
. ' . 

then · we can rech.1ce what we- are doing to the truckers, and we can get 

the_ Governpr. to throw in $30 million a year for the next six years, if 

he is t}.ling.to be Gpvernor that long. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: If you have it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN fOY: · Well, if you have it. .It is an upset 

figure. · ·If< you don't have it, you don't use it; if you have it, you 

use it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Once again, I think we· are addressing 

an: unstable . funding mechanism. We can't go from year to year; . not 

knowing what we have or what we do not have • 

. ASSEMBLYMAN f"OY: Well, if. you have ~1 th~ other ones in 

place_, then that is bonus money. It could then go into the Trust Fund 

to be used for additional ye$rs. 

You know, everyone is being asked to participate in this 

thing. The Legislature is being asked to put their neck on·line for 14 
' ' 

years, for $88 mlliion. We don't have a crystal ball to go into the 

future wlth; you are aware of that • 

.\ . . .· With re.ference to the other two, you are going to assume the 

Authoriti~s . will have positive · fund balances,· .and make that · money 

26 



available over a period of time. That is an assumption that has the 

potential for instability. If your projections are correct, we will 

generate truck fees each year, and maybe then some if it keeps going 

if we don't put them out of business. 

We may need an additional upset source, to a certain extent, 

that has to be triggered in, to make up for any shortfalls with respect 

to these revenues. You might get a recalcitrant Legislature; you might 

get a Republican Legislature at some time that does not want to spend 

any money. The fact- of the matter is, maybe we ought to be talking to 

the Administration. Maybe we ought to have the Governor here at a 

hearing, and listen to what he is going to do with the balance of the 

.surplus. 

it is. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Mr. Chairman-~ 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: If that sounds partisa~, it is only because 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Mr. Chairman, if I may? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Do you want to ask some questions? 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: No, I want to make some general 

statements, as has been done in the past few minutes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Two minutes of general statements. The 

Commissioner's time is valuable. I have other questions on the point. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I agree with 

some of the thoughts my colleague has expressed. I don't· agree with 

the mechanisms, because basically what we are concerned about is what. 

we feel is important for the State of New Jersey today. · And, . creating 

a form of stable funding-- Because we do not know what is going to 

. come down in a year and one-half from now; I have no idea how many 

legislators will retain their seats, nor how long it will take for the~ 

to· understand and know the problems we have in the State of New Jersey 

with reference to transportation. I think we· have the knowledge and 

the information at this point in time in this Legislature, to know that 

unless the $3 billion backlog is immediately addressed and taken care 

of -- and basically a good portion of this money is for that purpose 

we are going to bankrupt the State of New Jersey, with reference to 

moving people, goods, and businesses throughout our State. 
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So, I _don't think we should address this politically. I 

don't think we can address it as to the economy of the .. b·udget ~- its 

surplt.Jses this year versus next year br the year after, etc. I think 

-what -we: have to do is to concem ourselves with establishing something 

that the -S~ate of New Jersey needs, and that is a firm, stable funding 

-process in orqei' to be able to address the problems. This may not be 

the _aiiswe_t, but it is the only one that I have seen down the line in 

the eight years I have been here. I am willing to try to give it a 
chance, because it _seems _to be the best· solution we have been able to 

find. -

We in the Legislature can control this, and control it 

completely. lf things are not. working out in a couple of years, we 

will have·· the_ rights, a~ a Legislature, to be_- able to do something _ 

about it. That 18 why l think it -is so .important to put something like 

_this on the books. 

ASSEMaL YMAN BRYANT: Mr. Markert -- and I doh' t to get into a 

long -dialogue "!'- that is not necessarily true -- that we will control 

it. We have .not .controlled any authority- that has been created by the 

State. We are talking about 1 0-year payouts and 14.:..year payouts. I am · 

not- so sure we are going to control that anyw-ay". 

_ All I am saying is, this Committee is responsible to the 

~onstituents _of the State of Neirl Jersey, and we are responsible to do 

thinga at the lowest · cost to those constituents. We do have a huge 

surplus -this year. The Legislature is -responsible to discuss that 

surpll.l~, and where it is needed. And, if that can pay for one year-.:. 
We are _only _ taiking about a three-year backlog right now, assuming we 
paid it all. _So, those are issues I think we should _be discussing 

here. The·y ·are pertinent to wh_ether they voters are going to- pay _more 

money~ 

Let me ask you a question, Commissioner. What· I want to know 

is the concern your office and the -Executive branch might have in 

establishing a n~w Authority. What it_ does is, as everyone- knows, it 

by-passes the voters and their constitutional right to vote on debt, 

whict): is • soml!thing,. in this ·State, when we go to general obligation 

· bonds-,> they vote on ...;~ they vote on debt. r am not in fear of the 
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voters if, in fact, this is so critical to the State of ~ew. Jersey 

· which I believe it is. I bell ve, as a legislator, representing my 

district, I would sell this to my voters because of what it will do 

economically for them, and what it will do for them in terms of jobs. 

They would then have the opportunity to decide if, in fact, whatever 

new debt is created and paid for by this State will be· something they 

are part of~ and that they had something to do with the decision-making 

on that debt. I don't see why we want to obfuscate that, and I would 

like to know whether that was taken into consideration. 

COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: First of all, I would assume that we 

had advise from the Attorney General's bond counsel that we are not 

doing anything that takes away anybody's constitutional rights. We are 

doing something that is perfectly tonstitutional, and perfectly 

permissible. 

The State has--

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Is it a mechanism to by-pass the 

voters? Do they vote on these bonds? 

COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: If the question is, do the voters 

vote on these bonds, you know the answer to that and I know the 

answer; they don't vote on these bonds. Did they vote on the Building 

Authority bonds? Did they vote on the Mortgage Finance Authority 

bonds? Did they vote on a whole host of others? The answer is no~ and 

the reason is they don't have to. This mechanism is· exactly -. .... not 

exactly, but it is quite similar to the Building Authority mechanism. 

It is not exactly similar, but it is very, very close to what is done. 

there. It is very, very similar to what is done around the United 

States in a lot of other states. 

Basically, we have a Constitutional mechanism, and this is 

one man's view, but my view is that with a program where you need money 

on an annual basis, year in and year out -- unlike special purpose bond 

issues for things that are in many way discretionary -- transportation, 

is not discretionary. It is the foundation of our economy. It is 

something that has to be attended to every single year. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: I am going to get your vote on a tax 

yet. 
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COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: The general obligation bond route is 

not.th~ way to go with transportation issues, in my judgment. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: . Let me ask you a couple of other 

questions. A$ I understand it, when analyzing the. State's ·debt 

capac_ity, all State· indebtedness is considered. Why wou~d this type of 

debt. have e more positive_ effect on out rating than a· general·, 

obligation bQnd would, if any? Or does it? 

COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: Of course, all_ debt is going to be· 

considered in all its forms. I think the reason that comment was made 

to us. by one of-· the rating agencies was, they see the exact point I am 
talking· &bout ~- that there is some discipline to the process. It is 

not a hit-or-miss thing. It· is not risking the economy of this State • 

·by not. doing whit needs to be done by saying we are going to go at out 

business and we :are going to plan our business ~ensibly. We ar_e not 

· going to design projects ·for which there is no money to build. We are . 

going to decide what needs to be . done, and we are going to go out and · 

attack it on a sy.stematic basi~. 

I think what goes into the credit r·ating is a lot more than 

ao analysis of ·the debt; it is the general state of the economy. ·It is 

the State's ability to discipline itself, among-other things. They see 

this as, adding ~orne discipline to the budgetary process . and to the 

Department of Transportation's work. 

ASSEM8L YMAN BRYANT: Maybe you can explain to me what the 

components of the discipline are. 

COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: Discipline is when we have looked at 
our needs and decided what they are. We have now put a mechan,ism in 

p_lace whj.ch allows us to fund them. That is· discipline. The other 

part of the discipline is, the Legislature makes the commitmemt . to fund 

them, not on e' hit-or-miss basis, but over an extended period of time. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Is it my understanding the Legislature . 

cannot.make that same commitment, using the same type of foundation, on 

a g~ne:ral obligation bond? . I am just asking a ·question. 

COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: This_ is not the place to be critical 

o.f the Legislature.. (laughter)· 
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ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: I am trying to find out how we can make 

one commitment and we can't make the other, assuming we did the same 

thing -- as you said, assuming we had the same components. 

COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: Because once these bonds are sold, 

the Legislature will be fully committed to making the payments. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: That is with any bond issue. 

COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: It is true with general obligation 

bonds, but look what has happened in the past. I believe this is true 

of the 1968 bond funds, and I know it was true with the '79 bond 

funds. The bond funds in 1979 were to be -- they were intended to be 

-- an addition to normal appropropriations to match Federal dollars. 

That is not what happened. As soon as that bond issue passed, tt)e 

State stopped funding matching funds for the Federal program. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: So, what you are telling me is, if we 

pass legislation with the components of $88 million, $25 million, and 

$30 million, the other part of that is· an obligation bond for ten 

years -- which is completely different from the other types of bonds we 

have ever put out in this State; we have generally issued 30-year 

bonds and that will not give the Legislature a signal of 

obligation? I am trying to figure out the difference so I 

understand ito 

COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: That w~s their view, and I am trying 

to read into what they said to me. But , they don't see, in the normal 

general appropriations process, the same kind of commitment this 

program gives to transportation. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: So, it was never really discussed; but, 

we have never passed legislation which put in components, for payment 

of anything, like that before. 

COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: That's also true. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: So, therefore, they probably didn't 

discuss ft, or think of it. 

COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: I don't know. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Maybe we will ask them that. We have 

some of them coming up to testify; we can ask them at that timeo 

Are there any other states that use this method of funding 

right now? 
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CoMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: I don't think there is , any oth~r 

state that would have·quite this mechanism, but similar mechanisms have 

·been used. · for. instance, appropriations bonds have been used in New 

York t.o finance the MTA capital program, where there is a commitmert 

from the Legislature to make a contractual payment every. year to the 

MTA, on ·the· basis that bonds were sold, and to fund· the capital 

program. So, yes, that is one place where is has been done. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: You convinced me of exactly what I just 

said' .tt}at- if· we make a commitment on the part of the Legislature to 

general obligation bonds, we can probably do this- that way also. 

COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: No.. We are talking about· t~o 

. diffe~ent things. These are a commitment to make future a.ppropriatons 

on the _basls of .whj.ch bonds were sold to finance a capital program. 

:. ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Couldn't this Legislature do the same 

thing with general obligation bonds? 

COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: You can't do anything until the 

.voters.approve it, if you go to a general obligatj.on bond. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANt: I am saying by statute; can't we create 

a statute ':wf'l.i.ch makes us obligated' assuming the voters approve that 

bond, to make certain payments? 

COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: The . statute would be subject to-

chf:lnge on an annual basis. We have a statute on the books right now, 

for instance for a local aid program, and it hasn't been funded in 12 

. years •. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: .Well, this statute will be subject to 

change too. 

COMMISSlONER SHERIDAN: ·Once those bonds are ,sold, Mr. 

Chairman, with. all due respect, the Legislature would not be legally 

committed to make. those. bond payments, but in my opinion, there i~ no 

way ·those. bonds will not be paid, because to do so would wreak havoc 

with the State's.fiscal health. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Well, I don't want to go around and 

around. on this. I will ask one more follow-up question, because 
. . 

otherwise l will be going around in a circle with this. It seems to me 

that ·if tnit can be done with this type of bond, if we pass legislation • 
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that says we are committed to a general obligation bond, .if it passes, 

we have to be committed to make those payments. There is no 

substantive difference in that obligation to stop us from payment, 

because those new bondholders -- assuming the voters passed it-- That 

would be a condition of those bonds. It would be a guarantee to their 

bonds also, because there is a statute on their books that says the 

same thing as this would say to the Authority. 

I'm wrong? Then explain it to me. I'm not good in finance. 

COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: I think once the bonds are sold, the. 

Legislature will be committed to making sure that the debt service on 

those bonds is paid. Every other mechanism, where there is a 

commitment by statute is something that the Legislature could renege on 

the following year. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Commissioner, let's get to another matter, 

as far as the commitment is concerned. While you are saying there is 

no legal commitment, it is a moral commitment. The fact of the matter 

is, if the legislature were to fail to appropriate the $88 million, and 

the bonds were jeopardized, it would be encumbent upon the 

Transportation Authority to sue the Legis.lature on behalf of those 

bondholders. Because, obviously, the bondholders are going to sue the 

State Transportation Authority. So, we are going to get into a round 

robin litigation on this one if we fail to appropriate the money. 

COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: Assemblyman, I--

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: (interrupting) And, the court is going to 

order us to appropriate it, that's the bottom line. This is as legal 

and binding a commitrrierit as you can perceive, without putting it in 

binding terms, in writing. 

COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: That's my point. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: You are exactly right. There is no 

question about that. We have to come up with the money every year, or 

we are in a position to be the recipients of litigation regarding a 

breach of faith with respect to those bondholders. There is no 

question about it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: My point is, you can do the same thing 

by statute wi.th general obligation bonds. 
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. : ·.·· ~ . 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: That may be. That . is not the issue I am 

addrE!sSing. 

-COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: I guess we have a disagreement -- a 

large di~agreement -- on that point. 

-AS~EM.BL YMAN BRYANT: Are there -any other questions? 

(negat~ve reapbnae) 

Commissioner, thank you for your testimony. We appreciate 

your appearance before the Transportation Committee. 
. . 

COMMISSIONER SHERIDAN: . Thank you very much. 
', . . . . . 

ASSEMBLYMAN-BRYANT: We will now take a two-minute break. 

{Two Minute Break) 
- - . 

AFTER. RECESS: 

-ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Our next witness will be Mr.- Nicholas 

Capozzoli. 

NICHOLAS CAPOZZOLI: Mr• Chairman; members of the Committee, I thank 

you for allowing me to testify th~a morning. My remarks will be quite 

brief.· I have a written statement prepared,. and I wl.ll be happy to 

answer any· qciestions you might have wi ttl respect to roy testimony. -

My name is Nicholas J. Cap9zzoli, Jr.~ and I am· a member of 

the law_ firm of 'Mudge Rose Guthrie Alexander & Ferdon. My firm has 

acted as an advisor in the drafting of this bill. I would now like to 

- . read -from my prepared statement, if I may. _ 

This bill~ if adopted, will establish the New Jersey 

lransportation Trust fund Authority, whose purpose will be to aid in 

-the payment and- financing of_ transportation~ projects within- the State 

· . of New ·Jersey • 

. In furtherance of this purpose, the Authority is granted the 

po~er to borrow- money arid -to issue bonds. It is contemplated · that _ 

bonds of the Authority would be principally secured by amounts paid to 

the Authority 'ftCJtTI the General Fund of the State. In addition, the 

proposed legislation would authorize_ the utilization of any . amounts 

- received fram . .the State toll road avthorities for the payment of debt 

· se·rvici~ ~ the.; Authority •a bonds. The legislation would also PE!tmit 
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the Authority to transfer amounts received from either · of the 

aforementioned sources directly to the State to pay transportation 

project costs. 

The proposed legislation expressly provides that the State's 

payments to the Authority are subject to and dependent upon 

appropriations being made from time to time by the Legislature. Thus, 

each year rooney for the State's annual payment must be approved by the 

Legislature through the usual appropriation process. 

The proceeds of bonds issued by the Authority will be paid 

over to the State Treasurer for deposit in a Special Transportation 

Trust fund to be used for transportation purposes. The expenditure of 

amounts from this fund by the Department of Transportation can be made 

only pursuant to appropriations or authorizations made from time . to 

time by the Legislature. 

The Authority will be created· to accomplish two principal 

goals. First, to structure a program and raise funds to finance the 

State's transportation program in a manner acceptable in the financial 

marketplace; and, second, to make certain that the program is legally 

feasible. 

The issuance of bonds by a public entity, secured by state 

payments that are subject to appropriation by a state legislature has 

become an acceptable and recognized form of financing, both within th~ 

State of New Jersey and elsewhere. 

In New Jersey, the State Building Authority has issued bonds 

s~cured by State lease payments which are subject to and dependent upon 

appropriations being made by the State Legislature. In addition, bonds 

have been issued by counties in New Jersey, pursuant to . the County . 

College Bond Act; to finance the State's portion of the capital cost 

for county colleges. These bonds are secured by payments from the 

State which are subject to legislative appropriation. 

Both of the aforesaid financing structures have passed 

Constitutional muster in cases decided by the New Jersey Supreme Court. 

Deviating from the text a little bit, I might cite the 

cases. One is Holster v. The Board of Trustees of Passaic College, 

which was dec iced in .1971. And, the second case, dealing with the 
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Building Authority, was Anorato v. The ·New Jerey Building Authority, 

which was decided in July, 1982 • 

·,cases? 

. ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Do you have the citations·. 'on those 

MR. CAPOZZOLI: I can get them for the Committee •. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: I would appreciate . that·. 

MR. CAPOZZOLI: In both of these cases th~ court recognized 

that even .tt'lough it was . contemplated that appropriations would be made 

.bY the State Legislature, there was no legal obligation on the part of 

the·:State to: dO so and, therefore, a debt of the State was not created~ 

In ,the State· of New York, the Metropolitan Transportation 

Authority has· issued over $500 million aggregate principal amount of 
. . . 

bonds, secured by service contracts with the State of New York. These 

contracts pr!Jvide that in consideration of the operation of the State's 

commuter railroads and transit fa~ilities by the MTA, the State Will 

make payments for costs incurred i.n such operation, including debt 

service on bonds issued by the MTA. The payments under these service 

conttacte are. su:bject to legislative appropriation. 

There is also precedent for the use by a public authority of 

funds. generated by another public authority~ Pursuant to statute, th~ 

New. York MTA receives funds from the Triborough Bridge and Tunnel 

Authority. Some figures that I have obtained indicate that the . 

Triborough:Bridge and Tunnel Authority, in 1983, transferred to the New 

York City Transit Authority -- which is controlled by the MTA -- funds 

of aver $104 million, and transferred directly to· the MTA amounts o~er 

$83 million. The MTA has issued over $400 million in bonds, secured in 

part by these revenues. 

In conclusion, · the · plan contained in the New · Jersey 

. Transportation Trust Fund Authority Act of 1984, is one intended to 

provide a reliable method to aid in the payment and financing of the.· 

State'.s transportation needs in a manner acceptable to the. financiai 

marketplace, and permitted under the Constitution and laws of the State 

of New Jersey~ Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Mr. Capozzoli, you are not talking about 

. their fina,.,Pial stab.ility; you are saying. it is legal to· issu.e these 

types ·of . bcirids? · 
' •. !"" • ., ........... ~ ' • ,. • • • ~? ~· . 
·~.-(:~,60.:-·t:. ..... ;·~; .... ·:. .......... ' ~~·, _ _.~· -·''-.' -,~'11-~,j~ ... 
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MR. CAPOZZOLI: Yes, sir. I am a lawyer, and I spe~k to the 

legalities • 

. ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Have you represented any other states 

with regard to the issuance of these types of bonds? 

MR. CAPOZZOLI: My firm represents . the Metropolitan 

Transportation Authority the New York Metropolitan· Transportation 

Authority -- which I just referred to. 

Bonds which are issued, subject to payments from states that 

appropriate funds to secure them are generally acknowledged in the 

marketplace, and this i$ done very frequently. As a matter of fact, 

the Albany Mall was financed in such a matter. I guess they issued 

bonds that totaled somewhere in the amount of $1 billion. Those were 

secured similar to the way your Building Authority does it, by lease 

payments from the state. But, here again, those lease payments are 

subject to appropriation by the state legislature, and there is no 

legal obligation on the part of the state to make those payments. So, 

they are not considered debts of the state within any constitutional 

prohibition. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Let me ask you another question. Do you 

represent any authorities in the State of New Jersey, or does your firm 

represent any authorities in this State? 

MR. CAPOZZOLI: Do we represent any authorities in the State 

of New Jersey? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Any authority, or any subdivision, in 

the State of New Jersey? Do you represent this State in a bonding 

capacity? 

MR. CAPOZZOLI: Yes. We have represented the State in the 

issuance of its GO bonds. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Let me ask you another question. 

Assume you had the same dollar mechanism, and there was ,a · statute 

passed, obligating the State Legislature to create $88 million, $25 · 

million, and $30 million on the basis that we would pass. a general 

revenue bo~d sort of the same way you did it with the toll 

authorities. In the agreement it would say: "If you don't enact this 

piece of legislation, the money doesn't come." 
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Assuming we did the same type of thing by legislati.on, and 

the vote taken was to pass the general obligation bond. · The· State now 

passes the statute, saying: "We will contribute $88 million; we will 

contribute $25 million; or, we will contribute $30 million." In yout 

experience,· would that have the .same· effect as these other ·types of 

bonds would have? 

MR. CAPOZZOLI: The same effect in what manner? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: ln terms of it being legal. 

MR. CAPOZZOLI:' Oh, they would be legal all right. If you 

are talking about ~assing legislation which· would authorize the 

issuance · of general obligation bonds for these purposes, ahd that 

legislation:· were to be submitted to the voters and· passed; 1· assume 
. . 

that wouldbe a legal mechanism. 
. . 

. ASSEMBLYMAN: BRYANT: But, I am also saying it is a statute 

which would ·say the State Legisla~ure will commit $88 million a year 

during the course of those bonds, assuming they were for ten years; $25 

million from another source, assuming that the toll authorities were in 

agreement to do that; and, $30 million from truckers, or whatever. 

Would t~at give more for.ce and weight to those bonds? 

MR. CAPOZZOLI: . Well, when you say give more force and weight· 

to the bonds; I--

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: (interrupting) We would have created a 

mechanism in order to pay bonds, similar to what you are doing. 

MRo CAPOZZOLI: Are you suggesting that the legislation Which 

would commit the ·$88 million, would be committed to the payment of the 

general obligation bonds? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Yes. 

MR. CAPOZZOLI: Well, you could do that right in the. 

legislation authorizing the bonds themselves, and that is voted on by · 

the voters. Under the New Jersey Constitution, any general obligation 

bonds that are issued by the State are required to have a way and a 

means to pay those ·bonds. So, you will find in .many instances there is 

a provision, for instance, where a sales tax will be utilized to pay 

the bonds. 
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However, in the last analysis, they are bottom-line secured 

by the full faith and credit of the State, and ad valorem taxes can be 

levied to pay the bonds, if necessary. That is really how they receive 

their Triple A Rating at the present time. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Thank you. Are there a:ny questions? 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: I have a question. This was mentioned 

before by Commissioner Sherid~n, and it had to do with a hypothetical 

scenario, where some obstreperous legislature decides they are not 

going to fund the $88 million in a given year. I notice, on page two 

of your statement, you said, "In both cases the court recognized that 

even though it was contemplated that appropriations would be made by 

the ••• legislature, there was no legal obligation on the part of the 

State to do so•~··" Have you had any experience with a situation where 

· this has occurred -- where the legislature refused to fund these moral 

obligations, as the Commissioner termed them; and, has litigation been 

engendered as a result of that failure? Are you aware of anything like 

that happening? 

MR. CAPOZZOLI: I am not aware of any such instance. I would 

have to say that when these bonds are sold, I assume they will be sold 

on the basis of an official statement, which will be distributed with 

the bonds, to the prospective bond purchasers. Certainly, that 

official statement will make it abundantly clear that bonds are payable 

from certain sources. Some of those sources will be by appropriation-­

mainly, they will be by appropriation from the state. And, in bold 

letters, it will advise the prospective purchaser~ that there is no 

legal obligation on the part of the legislature to make the 

appropriations needed. 

So, as far as litigation being commenced, I can't say it will 

not be commenced, but they won't have a leg to stand on, because there 

was no legal obligation to pay on the part of the state, and that is 

the basis upon which they bought their bonds. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Right. Then that engenders my second 

question, which is: Does that not then, since they become somewhat 

higher-risk bonds, · affect the ·marketability of those bonds? Are ·we 

likely to have · a less favorable rating because ·of this financing 

mechanism? 
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MR~ CAPOZZOLI: · first of all, I would like to make it cleat 

that ··I am not a financial advisor. I am a lawyer. However., my 

experie-nce has been that a bond of this nature would have a rating of 

one notch below whatever the rating of the state is, because there is 

no full faith and credit behind them. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Does that translate into what one pays 

in points, from your experience? 

MR. CAPOZZOLI: Most certainly, a lower· r~ting would have to 

be reflected in the interest rate on the bonds, yes. 

ASSEHBL YMAN rOY: . Lower rating, higher inlerest -- right? 

MR. CAPOZZOLI: Here again, I think there are people from the 

financial world here today. Certainly, someone can correct me if l am 

wrong. I &:11'1· just drawing 'from my own experience. 

ASSEMBLYMAN rOY: . Thank you. · 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: I . a~ going to go to Mr. Markert and then 

·· to Mr. Cupro~ski. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Thank you. Mr. Capozzoli, with 

reference to the same topic, what would happen if the state wanted t.o 

renege on the bonds that were sold under this Authority, ·bands which; 

as you stated, had in bold letters that there would be no commitment by 
· the state, . and,· therefore, would give no legal process by ·which they 

· could be sati.sfied due to default? What if the bonds were . not · paid? 

If you could just follow up on that, as an attorney, could you tell us· 

· · what would happen legally in that case? 

MR. CAPOZZOLI: Well, as a legal matter -- as I .mentioned 

before -- a· bondholder may choose to sue. I will reiterate. that he 
. . . 

would not have a leg to stand on because the document selling the bonds 

to that particular purchaser would have·made it clear that hecould no~ 

bind future ' legislatures with this type of bond; there would be no 

legal obligation · on · the part of the legislature to make an 

, appropriation. Therefore, with no legal obligation,· there is no legal 

basis ·far· a ·law suit • 

. . However, if appropriations are not made, and if; as· a result 

of the appr'opriat1ons ~ot being made, · bonds by a state author1~y ·go 

into defau·~t,. most certainly . I would have to think that would have an 

effect on 'the credit rating of the state • 
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Now, purchasers who buy the bonds, and the rating agencies 

who give the ratings to these bonds understand that. That is why the 

rating agencies are able to rate them so high. 

For instance, with respect to the State of New Jersey, if New 

Jersey had a Triple A, this type of bond probably would get a Double 

A. Again, I hedge because I am a lawyer; I am not a financial 

adviser. So, it is certainly recognized by the rating agencies that 

they would expect future state legislatures to meet the obligations of 

previous administrations and legislatures by making those payments. 

You have a perfect 'case in point in your area, in Camden. I 

represented the South Jersey Port Corporation when they had their bond 

issue, many, many years ago. Those were moral obligation bonds, and 

because of the conditions down South, it has been very difficult for 

the corporation to raise the revenues required in order to make the 

debt service payments on the bonds. So, the legislature has had to, 

for many years, make payments for this debt service reserve in order to 

pay these bonds. That is what we call the moral obligation bond. 

Let me give you another example -- I hate to tell you this, 

because you must think I represent every authority in New Jersey, which 

is · not true -- we were bond counsel to the New Jersey Sports and 

Expostion Authority at the time the New York Giants were brought over 

·to New Jersey. At that time, it was very difficult to try' and sell 

bonds that were r;;ping to be backed by racing revenues, and the only way 

they were capable of selling those bonds was to put the moral 

obligation of the State behind those bonds. The Legislature did that. 

They authorized that moral obligation. It was given. It was done, 

and today we have refunded those bonds. There is no longer any moral 

obligation, as you know. Some of those bonds were actually refunded 

through a guarantee by the State, because it reduced their debt service 

requirements.· 

This is a recognized form of financing when, used proper 1 y. 

And, I submit to you that this is a proper instance for its use. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: All right. But, at the outside, we may be 

·.exposed to a little higher premium with respect to the fact that we are 

not going to have a Triple A Rating, we may have a Double A Rating. 
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MR. CAPOZZOLI: ·I would say that generally speaking, if you 

have a g·eneral obligation bond of the State which runs 20 years, and 

you then set up an appropriation process for an identical type bond, I 

would have to assume you . would ·pay a higher interest rate, because one 

.bond would berated higher than the other. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Mr. Cuprowski? 

ASSEMBLYMAN. 'cUPROWSKI: Yes. . You ma.de some statements, and 

you. 'rnade refeJ'ence to public authority funds generated by another 

public, aUthority. You made reference to the fact that the New York MTA 

receives funds from the Triborough Bridge and Tunnel Authority. 

MR. CAPOZZOLI: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CUPROWSKI: Is that a similar arrangement to the 

propos~d piece of legislation we are drafting, which ·states that. this 

Authority may enter into contracts with . the State's toll road 

authorities, · Who can provide funds to this particular Authority? 

Obviously, that would be done by contract -- this Authority versus the 

toll road a~thor.ities. I was wondering if that is a similar· 

arrangement to the one you cited? 

MR. CAPOZZOLI: I am not too sure that is actually a 

:contractual arrangement. They ~ay actually be provided for by $tatute. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CUPROWSKI: As opposed to the· contractual 

arrangements between the two authorities? 
I . 

MR. CAPOZZOLI: Yes. I cannot .swear to that, but that may be 

a statutory provision, as distinguished from a contractual 

arrangement. The effect is the. same. I believe most of the dollars 

turned over are surplus-type dollars that a.re used by the MTA. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Mr. Gill? 

. ASSEMBLYMAN GILL: I have just one quick question. You talk · 

about the possibility of what this may do to the credit' rating, and so 

forth. What, in your experience, was the experience of . the 

·Meadowlands? Understanding that New Jersey's ·credit rating is Triple 

A, wha~ was the credit rating on the bonds for the New Jersey 

Meadowlands exposition? Was it Double A? 

MR. CAPOZZOLI: When they were originally issued on the moral 
. ' 

obligation., I think they 'were rated Qne ·notch below the State. It is 
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different today, because there is no moral obligation bond. They are 

strictly secured by the revenues generated. So, they are somewhere in 

· the A area -- Single A, I think. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Would you anticipate -- I guess this should 

be addressed by one of the financial experts -- any difficulty in 

having these bonds sold -- picked up by the general public, or what 

have you? · 

MR. CAPOZZOLI: I would think not. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Okay. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Let me ask you another question: Do you 

know of any other state that has set up an Authority, such as the one 

·being contemplated, where there is a pass-through and they . have no 

assets? 

MR. CAPOZZOLI: They have no assets? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: From my understanding the Commission 

will have no assets. It is a complete pass-through. 

MR. CAPOZZOLI: Well, certainly, all of your industrial 

development authorities are in the nature of just funding authorities. 

I . think your EDA here in New Jersey -- and they have Industrial 

Development Authorities throughout most of the states -.- just acts as a 

funding agency; they have no a·ssets; they are not liable on the bonds. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: They don't have the moral obligation of 

the State of New Jersey? 

MR. CAPOZZOLI: They don't have any moral obligation, no. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Do you think that has any effect, when 

there are no assets in an authority we give a moral obligation to? It 

seems to me that would be a factor. 

MR. CAPOZZOLI: Well, when you say it has no effect, I think 

in the financial marketplace, it is not going to have an effect. I 

think people ~re going to understand what is t?eing done, and it is not 

something that has not been done before. The only point you are 

bringing up is that they do not have any physical assets. In other 

words, they are just passing the funds through, back to the State of 

New Jersey so these improvements can be made. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: That gets to another question. In . 

areas, such as MTA, they do have assets of their own, and· it seems to 

me in any borid market that I can think of, where there are some assets, 

··even though you have a moral obligation . of the state, there are some 

assets to attach to besides just the state's moral obligation. That is 

.'why I asked the qu-estion: Do you know ·of any place where the state· has 

given a tooral obligation· to an authority· that has absolutely no assets? . 

MR. CAPOZZOLI: I cannot think of one at this time. However, 

I would ... - and, here again, I am not a financial adviser -- not believe 

that the purchasers of bonds· look to the assets of the particular 

authority, unless they are going to get some first mortgage lien on 

those assets. I think you are really selling those bonds on the basis·.· 

of the obligation of the state to make the payn:tents. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT:. Then it is virtually like a general . 

obligation bond? 

MR. CAPOZZOLI: It· is not- like a general obligation bond · 

because--

, ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: (interrupting) Aside from the rating:; 

·we get $ bet,ter rating. 

MR. CAPOZZOLI: I tried to explain_ to you that the difference 

is, there is no legal obligation to pay. Since there is ·no legal 

obligation to ,pay, the rating agencies have decided that you can . not 

have the same rating. So, usually,. it is one notch below. But, the 

difference is, there is no legal obligation to pay, insofar as the 

appropriation · for bonds is concerned; and, where general obligation 

bonds are concerned, there is a legal obligation to pay. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Mr. Cuprowski? 

ASSEMBLYMAN CUPROWSKI: One final question. In your 

conclusion, you state that this method·. will provide a reliable way to 

aid· the payment -of the financing. I am just wondering, is it your 
. i 

opinion that this would be the preferred method, or the recommended. 

'method of financing? . 

· · MR~ CAPOZZOLI: I really don't think ·I could speak to. that. 
- . 

I can say this is a legal method of financing that has· been accepted 

·before. But; as to whether one is preferred over .another, I don't 

thJ.nk ·I. can really. $peak to that as a lawyer. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN CUPROWSKI: All right. Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Just as a follow-up to Assemblyman 

Cuprowski 's earlier question, do you feel it strengthens the 

relationship between the Trust Fund Authority and the authorities it 

may ent~r into a contractual relationship with, to have prior statutory 

authority, similar to New York's relationship with their authorities? 

In New Jersey we are simply going to · do it by contract, 

pursuant to this legislation. Do you feel there is a need for, or that 

it strengthens or enhances the situation if we have a separate, 

authorizing statute regarding these types of relationships? 

MR. CAPOZZOLI: I don't know that it would because, as I 

understand the legislation here, there is authority for the toll road 

authorities to enter into such arrangements with this Authority. So, 

there is recognition given to this by the Legislature, in contemplation 

that this would be done. I think this is pretty strong. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Do you have any background knowle~ge as to 

why it was done by statute in New York? 

bit. 

MR. CAPOZZOLI: No. Again, I hedged on that one a little 

ASSEMBLYMAN CUPROWSKI: May I ask one more question? 

MR. CAPOZZOLI: Certainly. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CUPROWSKI: It is a hypothetical question.· Since 

both Authorities have the authority, by statute, to enter into 

contractual agreements, what would prevent them-- If, five or ten 

·years down the road, one of those Authorities were to get into 
.finan6ial difficulty, could it be reversed? Could we appropriate moMey 

for them if they needed it? What control would the Legi,slature have 
under those conditions? 

MR. CAPOZZOLI: Let me see if I understand your question. 

You are posturing that one of the toll road authorities enters into an 

agreement with the Transportation Trust Fund Authority? 

ASSEMBLYMAN CUPROWSKI: That is correct. 

MR. CAPOZZOLI: And then, down the road, the toll road 

authority runs into-~ 

ASSEMBLYMAN CUPROWSKI: (interrupting) Financial difficulty. 
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MR. CAPOZZOLI: (continuing) ---financial-difficulties, which 

· would _result in the inability on the part of the toll road authority to 

make its· payment under-its contract? 

ASSEMBLYMAN CUPROWSKI: That could be part of it; - but, to 

extend that, suppose they·needed additional money? 

MR. CAPOZZOLI: The toll road authority needed additional 

funds? 

ASSEMBLYMAN CUPROWSKI: Yes, for whatever reason _.:_ capital 

improv.eme~t,· or whatever·-- would they have the authority to enter into 

an agreement, without coming back to the Legislature to provide those 

funds, if that was their wish, and if they contractually agreed to do 
.·, tl'lat? 

MR. CAPOZZOLI: for this Authority to provide funds to one of 

the toll road authorities?, 

'ASSEMBLYMAN CUPROWSKI: That's correct. ·Right now, it is the 

·other way around. 

MR. CAPOZZOLI: Yes. There is no authorization, as· far as I 

know, under this legislation which would permit_ that kind. of an 

arrangement • 

. ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: I guess, to follow up on that, he is. 

asking if there is any prohibition? 

MR• CAPOZZOLI: Well, I think the prohibition is in the 

specificity on how the funds are to flow through this ·Authority. Ih 
other words, we specifically set forth that appropriations are made by 

the State to this Authority. · Then, in turn, it specifically states 

that funds ·are then ·paid over to ·the special trust· fund held by the 

State Treasurer, upon certification of the Commission as to the ne~d. 

There is no provision here for ·those dollars to flow. ir:t any 

other manner, so I would_ have to say under· this legislation that would 

not be possible -- at_ least as it is now drafted. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GILL: But, there is nothing to inhibit one of 

the highway authorities -from asking f_or, and looking for, generation of 

·more moneys, so long· . as their contractual arrangements with the 

Department cif Transpo·r;tation are met? 
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MR. CAPOZZOLI: You say nothing would prohibit. it. I am 

. saying, as a practical matter, it would not be able to flow in that 
. . 

manner • The way it is now drafted, all funds are going to flow through 

this Authority, back to the State, into that special transportation 

fund. There is no other flow out, as it is presently drafted. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GILL: Okay. Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Are there any further questions? 

(negative response) Thank you very much, Mr. Capozzoli.' 

MR. CAPOZZOLI: Thank you very much for your attention. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Would anyone else like to testify at 

this hearing? 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: I think I might like to add, Mr. 

Chairman, that if there is someone in the audience from the financial 

end of this who could give us a little input as to how acceptable these 

bond~ might be, and just what rating they might have-- Since we have 

had so many questions along those lines this morning and both of the 

people who addressed us stated that they were not in the financial 

market and they could not accurately give us that information, I think 

maybe this is what we should look at right now. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Mr. Markert, I just asked if anyone 

wanted to testify. If anyone wants to testify, they can. A pub~ic 

hearing is not held to force people to testify. If someone wants to 

testify, please come forward. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Well, I would like to have someone from 

the financial market come before us because I do have some _questions, 

if is anyone is willing to come forward. 

(At which time two gentlemen from the audience volunteer to testify) 

MARl( MEYERS: Mr. Chairman, my name is Mark Meyers. I am from Dilon 

Reed·. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: You are from where? 

MR. MEYERS: Dilen Reed. 

THOMAS BDUST: I am Thomas Boust, from Bear Stearns and Company. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Do you gentlemen have a prep red text? 

You have come with nothing, correct -- just information that we might 

be looking for? 

~R. BOUST: We are here to answer your questions. 
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. ASSEMBLYMAN. fOY: Before you· start t 'I re~;Ilize you are with 

·these companies. . I assume you are not clerks, or whatever. ·Tell us a 

little bit about you:r background, so we know who is speaking-. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: That would be helpful. 

MR. r€YERS: I am Vice President of Dilon Reed~ I have been . 

with them for ten years. I am in the municipal finance area. 

finance? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: What do you do, municipal finance? 

MR. MEYERS: Municipal finance• 

. ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Not state finance, but municipal 

MR'. MEYERS: State tax-exempt finance. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Okay. 

MR. ·eoUST: · I am also part of the ·Public finance Department 

at Bear Stearns. · I have been witr Bear Stearns ·approximately ~ year 

$nd three-quarters. Before that, I had public sector experience w;i th 

New York State • 

. ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Do you have any testimony for us at all 

concerning the issue of finance? 

MR. MEYERS: I have no prepared remarks. 

MR. BOUST: We would be happy to answer your questions. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANf: · You just want to answer. questions? 

fine. We are open for questions. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Thank you, Mr., Chaj.rman. Gentlemen, I 

don't know how long you have been sitting in the room, but I. gvess you . 

heard some of the questions that have been asked on the financial end, 

that both the Commissioner and. the lawyer who was before us were able 

to answer·. Can you give us· any input, or any enlightenment, with 

reference to how these bonds would be accepted on the bond market? 

With the Triple A ·Rating New Jersey· now enjoys, would that be 

affected? · Would our current rate be affected? Just what would be the 

. effectual rate of these bonds, and how acceptable would they be under 
. . 

this particular· Legislature, as it is established? 

MR. 80UST: Could you break that question into a couple of 

pieces, and ask one at· a time? ·That one slid by m~· 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: If you can figure out the quest~on, 

answer it. · 
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MR •. MEYERS: I think you heard testimony b;>day about this 

proposal. The type of financi.ng that is being proposed . here is not 

something that is brand new. It has been done in other places, and 

with really significant and large ·issuers. It·. has been a very 

recognized vehicle in the financial markets. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Maybe you can give us an idea of how it 

has been done. 

MR. MEYERS: The MTA transaction . -- the service contract 

bonds, which have been discussed here earlier. and the Building 

Authority that you have here in New Jersey are not too dissimilar. 

I take it you have also heard comments today, regarding the 

rating agencies views, from the Commissioner as well as Mr. Capozzoli. 

I think what they said was accurate, in terms of how the rating 

agencies would view this bond, vis-a-vis a general obligation rating. 

In essence, it would be one notch below it. 

So, I think the way it is set up, you are not breaking 

absolutely new ground. The market has seen this type of instrument 

before, and it has bought this type of instrument before. You will be 

going out with a type of instrument which, in all likelihood, will be 

rated Double A, which is a highly-marketable piece of paper on the 

municipal market. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: How much does that cost in percentage 

points? 

ASSEMBLYMAN fOY: Yes. What is the difference in percentage 

points from Triple A down to Double A? 

MR. MEYERS: Probably around one-quarter. 

ASSEMBLYMAN fOY: A quarter of a point is all? 

MR. MEYERS: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Is it possible for either of you 

gentlemen to be available on the 21st? 

MR. MEYERS: I can be available. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: This conference room has to be vacated 

by twelve o'clock, because someone else is going to use it. What I am 

thinking about doing is to take the first half hour ·on the 21st 

prior to the truckers' testimony -- and ask these gentlemen if they 
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can come back on that date at nine o'clock fo.r further questioning. I 

am only doing this-because this room has tobe·utilited at this time. 

·:We will dismiss this hearing· until the 21st,· and the first 
priority will· be to finish our· _questioning on the financial- end of this 

issue. It seems· as though you are the only two left that we want to 

ask qllestions of •. · We will then start· with the testimony of the 

trucking industry. 

ASSEMBLYMAN fOY: Will that be in this room, Mr. Chairman? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: I am not sure. We will send notices to 

the members .of the Committee. regarding the· location. 

This tl8aring is now:concluded. 

(Hearing c_onc!Uded > 
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